
  

 
Meeting of the  

 

LICENSING SUB 
COMMITTEE 

__________________________________ 
 

Monday, 20 April 2009 at 6.30 p.m. 
_______________________________________ 

 
A G E N D A 

______________________________________ 
 

VENUE 
The Council Chamber, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, 

London, E14 2BG 
 
Members: 
 

Ward Represented 
Chair:  Councillor Rajib Ahmed East India & Lansbury 
Councillor Peter Golds Blackwall & Cubitt Town 
Councillor Fozol Miah Spitalfields & Banglatown 
 
If you require any further information relating to this meeting, would like to request a large 
print, Braille or audio version of this document, or would like to discuss access arrangements 
or any other special requirements, please contact: 
 
Margaret Sampson, Democratic Services,  
 
Tel: 020 7364 4850, E-mail: margaret.sampson@towerhamlets.gov.uk  
 



 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE 
 

Monday, 20 April 2009 
 

6.30 p.m. 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  (Pages 1 - 2) 
 
 To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those restricting 

Members from voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 of the Local Government 
Finance Act, 1992.  See attached note from the Chief Executive. 
 
 

 PAGE 
NUMBER 

WARD(S) 
AFFECTED 

3. RULES OF PROCEDURE  3 - 14  
 To note the rules of procedure which are attached for 

information. 
  

4. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  15 - 24  
 To confirm as a correct record of the proceedings the 

unrestricted minutes of the Licensing Sub-Committee 
meeting held on 16th March 2009. 

  

5. ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION    

5 .1 Application for variation of the Premises Licence: 
Kivre Food Centre, 497-499 Cambridge Heath Road, 
London E2 9BU (LSC072/809)   

25 - 94 Bethnal 
Green North 

5 .2 Application for a new Premises Licence: Coral, 56 Bow 
Common Lane, London, E3 4DE (LSC073/809)   

95 - 164 Bromley-By-
Bow 

 
 



1 
 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\1\3\AI00019314\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterests07010850.doc 
    

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 
This note is guidance only.  Members should consult the Council’s Code of Conduct for further 
details.  Note: Only Members can decide if they have an interest therefore they must make their 
own decision.  If in doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to 
attending at a meeting.   
 
Declaration of interests for Members 
 
Where Members have a personal interest in any business of the authority as described in 
paragraph 4 of the Council’s Code of Conduct (contained in part 5 of the Council’s Constitution) 
then s/he must disclose this personal interest as in accordance with paragraph 5 of the Code.  
Members must disclose the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting and 
certainly no later than the commencement of the item or where the interest becomes apparent.   
 
You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to 
affect: 
 

(a) An interest that you must register 
 
(b) An interest that is not on the register, but where the well-being or financial position of you, 

members of your family, or people with whom you have a close association, is likely to be 
affected by the business of your authority more than it would affect the majority of 
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision. 

 
Where a personal interest is declared a Member may stay and take part in the debate and 
decision on that item.   
 
What constitutes a prejudicial interest? - Please refer to paragraph 6 of the adopted Code of 
Conduct. 
 
Your personal interest will also be a prejudicial interest in a matter if (a), (b) and either (c) 
or (d) below apply:- 
 

(a) A member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would reasonably think that your 
personal interests are so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the 
public interests; AND 

(b) The matter does not fall within one of the exempt categories of decision listed in 
paragraph 6.2 of the Code; AND EITHER   

(c) The matter affects your financial position or the financial interest of a body with which 
you are associated; or 

(d) The matter relates to the determination of a licensing or regulatory application 
 

The key points to remember if you have a prejudicial interest in a matter being discussed at a 
meeting:- 
 

i. You must declare that you have a prejudicial interest, and the nature of that interest, as 
soon as that interest becomes apparent to you; and  

 
ii. You must leave the room for the duration of consideration and decision on the item and 

not seek to influence the debate or decision unless (iv) below applies; and  

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



2 
 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\1\3\AI00019314\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterests07010850.doc 
    

 
iii. You must not seek to improperly influence a decision in which you have a prejudicial 

interest.   
 

iv. If Members of the public are allowed to speak or make representations at the meeting, 
give evidence or answer questions about the matter, by statutory right or otherwise (e.g. 
planning or licensing committees), you can declare your prejudicial interest but make 
representations.  However, you must immediately leave the room once you have 
finished your representations and answered questions (if any).  You cannot remain in 
the meeting or in the public gallery during the debate or decision on the matter. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
 

RRUULLEESS  OOFF  PPRROOCCEEDDUURREE  
GGOOVVEERRNNIINNGG  AAPPPPLLIICCAATTIIOONNSS  FFOORR  

PPRREEMMIISSEESS  LLIICCEENNCCEESS    
AANNDD  OOTTHHEERR  PPEERRMMIISSSSIIOONNSS  

UUNNDDEERR  TTHHEE  LLIICCEENNSSIINNGG  AACCTT  22000033  
  
  

 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 3



 
 

1. Interpretation 
 
1.1 These Procedures describe the way in which hearings will be conducted under 

the Licensing Act 2003, as set out in the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) 
Regulations 2005 (as amended). The Procedures take into account the 
Licensing Act (Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates) Regulations 
2005.  The Procedures also include the time limits within which a hearing must 
commence (see Appendix A) and will be used by the Licensing Committee and 
Licensing Sub-Committee when conducting hearings. 

 
1.2 The Hearings Regulations provide (Regulation 21) that a Licensing Authority 

shall, subject to the provisions of those Regulations, determine for itself the 
procedure to be followed at a hearing. 

 
1.3 These Procedures, therefore, set out the way in which Licensing Sub-

Committee Meetings will be conducted under the Licensing Act 2003, following 
the requirements of the Hearings Regulations. Wherever appropriate they have 
included the procedures followed successfully when determining licence 
applications under previous legislation. 

 
1.4 Proceedings will not be rendered void only as the result of failure to comply 

with any provision of the Hearings Regulations (Regulation 31). 
 
2. Composition of Sub-Committee 
 
2.1 The Sub-Committee will consist of no less than three members and no 

business shall be transacted unless at least three members of the Licensing 
Committee are present and able to form a properly constituted Licensing Sub-
Committee.  In such cases the Chair shall have a second or casting vote. The 
Councillor for the ward in which the applicant's premises are situated, or where 
either the applicant or the objector resides, shall not normally form part of the 
Sub-Committee for that item on the agenda. 

 
3. Timescales 
 
3.1  Most hearings must take place within 20 working days from the last date for  

representations to be made with the following exceptions: 
 
Within 10 working days from the last date for the police to object to: 

 
- conversion of an existing licence; 
- conversion of an existing club certificate; 
- an application for a personal licence by an existing justices licence holder; 

and 
 
Within 10 working days from the date the Licensing Authority receives the 
notice for a review of the premises licence following a closure order. 
 
 
 

Page 4



 
 

Within 7 working days from the last date for the police to object to: 
 
- a temporary event notice. 
 
Within 5 working days from the last date for the police to object to: 
 
- an interim authority notice (Note: the police must give notice of their 

objection within 48 hours of being given a copy of the notice). 
 
Note: Where a hearing is likely to take longer than one day, the Authority 

must arrange for the hearing to take place on consecutive days. 
 

3.2 Timescale for notice of hearings to be given 
 
In most cases, the Authority shall give notice of a hearing no later than 10 
working days before the first day on which the hearing is to be held. The 
following are exceptions to that rule: 

 
 At least five working days notice must be given to the parties of the date of a 

hearing for determination of: 
 

- conversion of an existing licence 
- conversion of an existing club certificate 
- application for a personal licence by the holder of a justices licence 
- review of a premises licence following a closure order 

 
At least two days notice must be given to the parties to a hearing for 
determination of: 
 

- police objection to an interim authority notice 
- police objection to a temporary event notice  

 
3.3 Persons who must be notified of a hearing 
 

The persons who must be notified of a hearing are set out below as a 
summary:  
 
- any applicant for any licence or certificate or a temporary event notice. 

 
- any person who has made relevant representations about an application 

for a licence or for review of a licence (note for any representations 
deemed frivolous, vexatious or repetitious under Section 18(7)(c) or 
similar sections of the Licensing Act 2003 the objector must be notified of 
the Authority’s decision as soon as possible and in any event before any 
hearing). 

 
-        Any police officer who has given notice of objection to: 

 
• a person specified as a Designated Premises Supervisor 
• an interim authority 

Page 5



 
 

• transfer of a premises licence 
• a temporary event notice 
• a personal licence 

 
- Any holder of a premises licence or club premises certificate where: 

 
• application is made for review 
 

Note:  Anyone given notice of a hearing is a party and that is how that 
expression is used in these Rules of Procedure. 

 
3.4  Information to be provided in a notice of hearing 
 

The information that must be included in a notice of hearing includes:  
 

- The procedure to be followed at the hearing; 
- The right of the party to attend and to be assisted or represented by any 

person whether legally qualified or not; 
- The ability to give further information in support of their application where 

the Authority has sought clarification; 
- The right to question any other party if given permission by the Authority; 
- The right to address the Authority; 
- Notice of any particular points on which the Authority will want clarification 

at the hearing; 
- The consequences if a party does not attend or is not represented at the 

hearing; 
- For certain hearings particular documents must accompany the notice 

which is sent to parties informing them of the hearing.  Reference must be 
made to Schedule 3 of the Hearings Regulations for this purpose. 

 
3.5 Failure of Parties to Attend the Hearing 
 

If a party has informed the Authority that they will not be attending or be 
represented at the hearing, it may proceed in their absence. 
 
If a party does not give notice that they will not be attending but fails to attend 
and is not represented, the Authority may either: 
 
a) adjourn the hearing if it considers it to be necessary in the public interest 

or 
b) hold the hearing in the party’s absence 
 
If the Authority holds the hearing in the absence of a party, it will consider at the 
hearing the application, representation or notice given by the party. 
 
If the Authority adjourns the hearing to a specified date it must forthwith the  
parties of the date, time and place to which the hearing has been adjourned. 
 
 

Page 6



 
 

Note: Transition hearings cannot be adjourned to a date beyond the date that 
which causes an application to deemed as determined by default. 

 
4. Procedure at the Hearing 
 
4.1 The usual order of proceedings will be as set out below. The Sub-Committee 

will allow the parties an equal maximum time period in which to give further 
information in support of their application, representation or response. Where 
the Authority has given notice that it will seek clarification on that point at the 
hearing or where permission has been given to call any further persons to give 
supporting evidence, the Sub-Committee may allow the parties to question any 
other party and to address the Licensing Sub-Committee. The Sub-Committee 
will seek, in all cases, to avoid repetition of points (whether included in written 
material or otherwise), irrelevancy, or any abuse of the procedure. 

 
At the beginning of the hearing the procedure to be followed will be explained 
to the parties. The hearing will, so far as is possible, take the form of a 
discussion, led by the Sub-Committee. Cross-examination will not be permitted 
unless the Sub-Committee considers it necessary. 

 
i) The Chair will begin by explaining how the proceedings will be 

conducted, and indicate any time limits that may apply to the parties to 
the application. 

 
ii) The report will be briefly introduced by an Officer of the Licensing 

Section summarising the application. 
 

iii) The Sub-Committee will then consider any requests by a party for any 
other person to be heard at the hearing in accordance with the 
Regulations. Permission will not be unreasonably withheld provided 
proper notice has been given. 

 
iv) A summary of the nature and extent of the application by the applicant or 

their representative. This should be brief, avoid repetition of material 
already available to the Committee in the Officer’s report or otherwise, 
and include any reasons why an exception should be made to the 
Council’s Licensing Policy, where appropriate. The submission may be 
followed by the evidence of any person who has been given permission 
by the Committee to give supporting evidence on behalf of the applicant. 

 
v) A summary of the reasons for making representations about the 

application by any interested party. This should be brief and avoid any 
repetition of information already made available to the Committee either 
in the Officer’s report or otherwise.  That will be followed by the evidence 
of any person who has been given permission by the Panel to give 
supporting evidence on behalf of the objectors. 

 
vi) A summary of the reasons for making representations by or on behalf of 

any Responsible Authority. This should be brief and avoid any repetition 
of information already made available to the Licensing Sub-Committee 

Page 7



 
 

either in the Officer’s report or otherwise. That will be followed by the 
evidence of any person who has been given permission by the Panel to 
give supporting evidence on behalf of the Responsible Authority. 

 
vii) Members of the Sub-Committee may ask any questions of any party or 

other person appearing at the hearing. 
 
4.2 The following requirements of the Hearing Regulations will also be followed by 

the Licensing Sub-Committee:  
 

a) The Sub-Committee will be guided by legal principles in determining 
whether evidence is relevant and fairly admissible. In particular, hearsay 
evidence may be admitted before the Sub-Committee but consideration 
will always be given to the degree of weight, if any, to be attached to such 
evidence in all the relevant circumstances. 

 
b) The Sub-Committee may impose a time limit on the oral representations 

to be made by any party. In considering whether to do so, and in 
considering the length of any such time limit, the Sub-Committee will take 
into account the importance of ensuring that all parties receive a fair 
hearing, and the importance of ensuring that all applications are 
determined expeditiously and without undue delay. 

 
c) In considering the time limits referred to in (b) above, regard must be had 

to the requirement to allow each party an equal amount of time. 
 
4.3  When considering any representations or notice made by a party, the Authority 

may take into account documentary or other information produced by a party in 
support of their application, representation or notice, either: 
 
a) before the hearing, or 
 
b) with the consent of all other parties, by the Sub-Committee at the hearing  

 
The Authority will disregard any information given by a party, or any other 
person appearing at the hearing, which is not relevant to: 

 
a) their application, representation or notice; and 
 
b) the promotion of the licensing objectives or the crime prevention objective 

where notice has been given by the police. 
 
4.4 All hearings shall take place in public save that: 

 
a) The Licensing Sub-Committee may exclude the public from all or part of a 

hearing where it considers that, on balance, it is in the public interest to do 
so. 

 
b) The parties and any person representing them may be excluded in the 

same way as another member of the public 

Page 8



 
 

c) The Licensing Sub-Committee may require any person attending the 
hearing who in their opinion is behaving in a disruptive manner to leave 
the hearing and may: 

 
- refuse to permit the person to return; or 
- allow them to return only on such conditions as the authority may 

specify. 
 
4.5 Any person so excluded may, before the end of the hearing, submit to the 

Authority in writing, any information which, they would have been entitled to 
give orally had they not been required to leave. Where there are a number of 
items on the agenda, the adjournment of that item for a short period, whilst 
another item is heard, may allow this process to be carried out effectively. 

 
5. Determination of Application – Time Limits 
 
5.1 The Licensing Sub-Committee must make its determination at the conclusion of 

the hearing where the application is for: 
 
a) Conversion or variation of an existing licence during transition 
b) Conversion or variation of an existing club certificate during transition 
c) A review of a premises licence following a closure order 
d) A personal licence by the holder of a justices licence 
e) A counter notice following police objection to a temporary event notice 
 

5.2 In any other case the Authority must make its determination within the period of 
five working days, beginning with the day, or the last day, on which the hearing 
was held. 

 
5.3 Where a hearing has been dispensed with because all of the parties have 

agreed that a hearing is unnecessary (and the Authority has agreed, giving 
notice to the parties in writing), then the Authority must make its determination 
within 10 working days beginning with the day the authority gives such notices 
to the parties. The Team Leader (Licensing) shall be authorised to make the 
determination on behalf of the Authority. 

 
6. Record of Proceedings 
 
6.1 The Authority must arrange for a record to be taken of the hearing in a 

permanent and intelligible form and for that record to be kept for six years from 
the date of determination.  Where an appeal is brought against a determination 
by the Authority, the record must be kept for six years from the date of disposal 
of the appeal. 

 
7. Irregularities 
 
7.1 Proceedings will not be rendered void only as the result of failure to comply with 

any provision of the Hearings Regulations 
 

Page 9



 
 

7.2 Clerical mistakes in any document recording a determination of the Authority, or 
errors arising in such a document as the result of an accidental slip or omission, 
may be corrected by the Authority. 

 
8. Notices 
 
8.1 In accordance with the Regulations, any notices must be given in writing. Such 

a notice may be sent electronically, providing: 
 
a) it can be accessed by the recipient in a legible form; 
b) it is capable of being reproduced as a document for future reference; 
c) the recipient has agreed in advance to receive it in such form;  
d) a copy is sent in documentary form forthwith to the recipient. 

 
9. Appeals 
 
9.1 Either those who have made an application or those who have made 

representations on an application may appeal to the Magistrates Court. 
 

Note: An appeal must be commenced within twenty one days beginning with 
the day on which the appellant was notified by the Licensing Authority of their 
decision.  

Page 10



  

AP
PE

ND
IX

 A
 

   

Ap
pli
ca
tio
n T

yp
e 

Pe
rio
d o

f T
im
e w

ith
in 

wh
ich

 H
ea
rin
g t
o b

e H
eld

 
(af
ter
 re
ps
 ha

ve
 cl
os
ed
) 

No
tic
e 

Pe
rio
d o

f 
He
ari
ng
 

No
tic
e S

en
t T
o 

At
ten

de
e 

Re
ply
 

Fo
rm
 

Ba
ck
 In
 

Se
cti

on
 18

 (3
)(a

) (d
ete

rm
ina

tio
n o

f 
ap

pli
ca
tio

n f
or
 pr

em
ise

s l
ice

ns
e) 

20
 w
or
kin

g d
ay
s 

10
 w
or
kin

g 
da

ys
 

Ap
pli

ca
nt;

 
Pe

op
le 
wh

o h
av
e m

ad
e r

ep
res

en
tat

ion
s 

5 w
or
kin

g 
da

ys
 

Se
cti

on
 35

(3)
(a)

 (d
ete

rm
ina

tio
n o

f 
ap

pli
ca
tio

n t
o v

ary
 pr

em
ise

s 
lic
en

ce
). 

20
 w
or
kin

g d
ay
s 

10
 w
or
kin

g 
da

ys
 

Ap
pli

ca
nt;

 
Pe

op
le 
wh

o h
av
e m

ad
e r

ep
res

en
tat

ion
s 

5 w
or
kin

g 
da

ys
 

Se
cti

on
 39

(3)
(a)

 (d
ete

rm
ina

tio
n o

f 
ap

pli
ca
tio

n t
o v

ary
 pr

em
ise

s l
ice

nc
e t

o 
sp

ec
ify

 in
div

idu
al 
as
 pr

em
ise

s 
su

pe
rvi

so
r).
 

20
 w
or
kin

g d
ay
s 

10
 w
or
kin

g 
da

ys
 

Ap
pli

ca
nt 

(pr
em

ise
s h

old
er)

; 
Ch

ief
 O
ffic

er 
of 

Po
lic
e w

ho
 ha

s g
ive

n n
oti

ce
; 

Th
e p

ro
po

se
d p

rem
ise

s s
up

erv
iso

r 
5 w

or
kin

g 
da

ys
 

Se
cti

on
 44

(5)
(a)

 (d
ete

rm
ina

tio
n o

f 
ap

pli
ca
tio

n f
or
 tr
an

sfe
r o

f p
rem

ise
s 

lic
en

ce
). 

20
 w
or
kin

g d
ay
s 

10
 w
or
kin

g 
da

ys
 

Ap
pli

ca
nt;

 
Ch

ief
 O
ffic

er 
of 

Po
lic
e w

ho
 ha

s g
ive

n N
oti

ce
; 

Th
e p

res
en

t h
old

er 
of 

the
 pr

em
ise

s l
ice

nc
e  

5 w
or
kin

g 
da

ys
 

Se
cti

on
 52

(2)
 (d

ete
rm

ina
tio

n o
f 

ap
pli

ca
tio

n f
or
 re

vie
w 
of 

pr
em

ise
s 

lic
en

ce
). 

20
 w
or
kin

g d
ay
s 

10
 w
or
kin

g 
da

ys
 

Th
e h

old
er 

of 
the

 pr
em

ise
s l
ice

nc
e o

f w
he

re 
ap

pli
ca
tio

n a
pp

lie
s; 

Pe
op

le 
wh

o h
av
e m

ad
e r

ep
res

en
tat

ion
s; 

Ap
pli

ca
nt 

5 w
or
kin

g 
da

ys
 

Se
cti

on
 12

0(7
)(a

) (d
ete

rm
ina

tio
n o

f 
ap

pli
ca
tio

n f
or
 gr

an
t o

f p
ers

on
al 

lic
en

ce
). 

20
 w
or
kin

g d
ay
s 

10
 w
or
kin

g 
da

ys
 

Ap
pli

ca
nt;

 
Ch

ief
 O
ffic

er 
of 

Po
lic
e w

ho
 ha

s g
ive

n N
oti

ce
 

5 w
or
kin

g 
da

ys
 

Se
cti

on
 12

1(6
)(a

) (d
ete

rm
ina

tio
n o

f 
ap

pli
ca
tio

n f
or
 th

e r
en

ew
al 
of 

pe
rso

na
l li
ce
nc

e).
 

20
 w
or
kin

g d
ay
s 

10
 w
or
kin

g 
da

ys
 

Ap
pli

ca
nt;

 
Ch

ief
 O
ffic

er 
of 

Po
lic
e w

ho
 ha

s g
ive

n N
oti

ce
 

5 w
or
kin

g 
da

ys
 

Se
cti

on
 12

4(4
)(a

) (c
on

vic
tio

ns
 

co
mi

ng
 to

 lig
ht 

aft
er 

gr
an

t o
r 

ren
ew

al 
of 

pe
rso

na
l li
ce
nc

e).
 

20
 w
or
kin

g d
ay
s 

10
 w
or
kin

g 
da

ys
 

Th
e h

old
er 

of 
the

 lic
en

ce
; 

Ch
ief

 O
ffic

er 
of 

Po
lic
e w

ho
 ha

s g
ive

n N
oti

ce
 

5 w
or
kin

g 
da

ys
 

Pa
rag

rap
h 2

6(3
)(a

) o
f S

ch
ed

ule
 8 

(de
ter

mi
na

tio
n o

f a
pp

lic
ati

on
 by

 
ho

lde
r o

f a
 ju

sti
ce
s’ 
lic
en

ce
 fo

r 
10
 w
or
kin

g d
ay
s 

5 w
or
kin

g 
da

ys
  

Ap
pli

ca
nt;

 
Ch

ief
 O
ffic

er 
of 

Po
lic
e w

ho
 ha

s g
ive

n N
oti

ce
 

2 w
or
kin

g 
da

ys
 

Page 11



  

gr
an

t o
f p

ers
on

al 
lic
en

ce
). 

Se
cti

on
 31

(3)
(a)

 (d
ete

rm
ina

tio
n o

f 
ap

pli
ca
tio

n f
or
 a 
pr
ov

isi
on

al 
sta

tem
en

t). 
20
 w
or
kin

g d
ay
s 

10
 w
or
kin

g 
da

ys
 

Ap
pli

ca
nt;

 
Pe

op
le 
wh

o h
av
e m

ad
e r

ep
res

en
tat

ion
s 

5 w
or
kin

g 
da

ys
 

Se
cti

on
 48

(3)
(a)

 (c
an

ce
lla
tio

n o
f 

int
eri

m 
au

tho
rit
y n

oti
ce
 fo

llo
wi
ng

 
po

lic
e o

bje
cti

on
). 

5 w
or
kin

g d
ay
s 

2 w
or
kin

g 
da

ys
 

Th
e p

ers
on

 w
ho

 ha
s g

ive
n N

oti
ce
; 

Ch
ief

 O
ffic

er 
of 

Po
lic
e w

ho
 ha

s g
ive

n N
oti

ce
 

1 w
or
kin

g 
da

y 

Se
cti

on
 72

(3)
(a)

 (d
ete

rm
ina

tio
n o

f 
ap

pli
ca
tio

n f
or
 cl
ub

 pr
em

ise
s 

ce
rti
fic

ate
). 

20
 w
or
kin

g d
ay
s 

10
 w
or
kin

g 
da

ys
 

Ap
pli

ca
nt 

(cl
ub

); 
Pe

op
le 
wh

o h
av
e m

ad
e r

ep
res

en
tat

ion
s 

5 w
or
kin

g 
da

ys
 

Se
cti

on
 85

(3)
 (d

ete
rm

ina
tio

n o
f 

ap
pli

ca
tio

n t
o v

ary
 cl
ub

 pr
em

ise
s 

ce
rti
fic

ate
). 

20
 w
or
kin

g d
ay
s 

10
 w
or
kin

g 
da

ys
 

Ap
pli

ca
nt 

(cl
ub

); 
Pe

op
le 
wh

o h
av
e m

ad
e r

ep
res

en
tat

ion
s 

5 w
or
kin

g 
da

ys
 

Se
cti

on
 88

(2)
 (d

ete
rm

ina
tio

n o
f 

ap
pli

ca
tio

n f
or
 re

vie
w 
of 

clu
b 

pr
em

ise
s c

ert
ific

ate
). 

20
 w
or
kin

g d
ay
s 

10
 w
or
kin

g 
da

ys
 

Cl
ub

 th
at 

ho
lds

 cl
ub

 pr
em

ise
s c

ert
ific

ate
; 

Pe
op

le 
wh

o h
av
e m

ad
e r

ep
res

en
tat

ion
s; 

Ap
pli

ca
nt 

 

5 w
or
kin

g 
da

ys
 

Se
cti

on
 10

5(2
)(a

) (c
ou

nte
r n

oti
ce
 

fol
low

ing
 po

lic
e o

bje
cti

on
 to

 
tem

po
rar

y e
ve
nt 

no
tic

e) 
. 

7 w
or
kin

g d
ay
s 

2 w
or
kin

g 
da

ys
 

Th
e p

rem
ise

s u
se
r; 

Ch
ief

 O
ffic

er 
wh

o h
as
 gi

ve
n N

oti
ce
 

1 w
or
kin

g 
da

y 

Se
cti

on
 16

7(5
)(a

) (r
ev
iew

 of
 

pr
em

ise
s l
ice

nc
e f

oll
ow

ing
 cl
os

ur
e 

or
de

r).
 

10
 w
or
kin

g d
ay
s 

5 w
or
kin

g 
da

ys
 

Th
e h

old
er 

of 
the

 pr
em

ise
s l
ice

nc
e; 

Pe
op

le 
wh

o h
av
e m

ad
e r

ep
res

en
tat

ion
s 

2 w
or
kin

g 
da

ys
 

Pa
rag

rap
h 4

(3)
(a)

 of
 Sc

he
du

le 
8 

(de
ter

mi
na

tio
n o

f a
pp

lic
ati

on
 fo

r 
co

nv
ers

ion
 of

 ex
ist

ing
 lic

en
ce
). 

10
 w
or
kin

g d
ay
s 

5 w
or
kin

g 
da

ys
 

Ap
pli

ca
nt;

 
Ch

ief
 O
ffic

er 
of 

Po
lic
e w

ho
 ha

s g
ive

n N
oti

ce
 

2 w
or
kin

g 
da

ys
 

Pa
rag

rap
h 1

6(3
)(a

) o
f S

ch
ed

ule
 8 

(de
ter

mi
na

tio
n o

f a
pp

lic
ati

on
 fo

r 
co

nv
ers

ion
 of

 ex
ist

ing
 cl
ub

 
ce
rti
fic

ate
). 

10
 w
or
kin

g d
ay
s 

5 w
or
kin

g 
da

ys
 

Ap
pli

ca
nt 

(cl
ub

) 
 Ch

ief
 O
ffic

er 
wh

o h
as
 gi

ve
n N

oti
ce
 

2 w
or
kin

g 
da

ys
 

Page 12



 
 

APPENDIX B 
 
 

Regulation 8 
 
 
 Action Following receipt of notice of hearing 
1. 
 

A party shall give to the authority within the period of time provided for in the 
following provisions of this regulation a notice stating: 

(a)
. 

whether he intends to attend or be represented at the hearing; 
(b)
. 

whether he considers a hearing to be unnecessary. 
2. 
 
 
 
 
 

In a case where a party wishes any other person (other than the person he 
intends to represent him at the hearing) to appear at the hearing, the notice 
referred to in paragraph (1) shall contain a request for permission for such 
other person to appear at the hearing accompanied by details of the name of 
that person and a brief description of the point or points on which that 
person may be able to assist the authority in relation to the application, 
representations or notice of the party making the request. 

3. In the case of a hearing under: 
(a)
. 

section 48(3)(a) (cancellation of interim authority notice following police 
objection), or 

(b)
. 

section 105(2)(a) (counter notice following police objection to temporary 
event notice), 

 the party shall give the notice no later than one working day before the day 
or the first day on 
which the hearing is to be held. 

4. In the case of a hearing under: 
(a)
. 

section 167(5)(a) (review of premises licence following closure order), 
(b)
. 

paragraph 4(3)(a) of Schedule 8 (determination of application for conversion 
of existing licence), 

(c)
. 

paragraph 16(3)(a) of Schedule 8 (determination of application for 
conversion of existing club certificate), or 

(d)
. 

paragraph 26(3)(a) of Schedule 8 (determination of application by holder of 
justices’ licence for grant of personal licence), 

 the party shall give the notice no later than two working days before the day 
or the first day on which the hearing is to be held. 

5. In any other case, the party shall give the notice no later than five working 
days before the day or the first day on which the hearing is to be held. 

 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 16/03/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE 
 

HELD AT 6.30 P.M. ON MONDAY, 16 MARCH 2009 
 

THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 CLOVE 
CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members Present: 
 
Councillor Rajib Ahmed (Chair) 
Councillor Waiseul Islam 
Councillor Oliur Rahman 
 
Other Councillors Present: 
  
None. 
  
Officers Present: 
 
Mohshin Ali                                  -   (Consumer Services Officer) 
Zakir Hussain                                -  (Solicitor) 
Nadir Ahmed – (Trainee Committee Officer) 
Margaret Sampson – (Democratic Services) 
  
Applicants In Attendance:  

 
Mr Martin                                     The Gun  
Ms Croft                                       The Gun  
Mr Connor                                    Jeffrey Green Russell Solicitors 
Mr Skerratt                                   Resident in support 
Dr Glanville                                  Applicant for Review 
Mr Islam                                       Lane Foods 
Mr Islam                                       (Supporting applicant) 

 
Objectors In Attendance: 
  
Paul Johnson                             Environmental Health 

 
Members of the Public In Attendance: 
  
There were several residents present who were unable to sign 
the register. There were also two journal students present. 

 
 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
None. 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 15



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 16/03/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

2 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
None. 
 

3. RULES OF PROCEDURE  
 
Noted. 
 

4. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting were agreed and approved as a correct record.   
 

5. ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION  
 

5.1 Application for a review of the Premises Licence for The Gun, 27 Cold 
Harbour, London E14 9NS  
 
Mr Ali, Licensing Officer, introduced the report which outlined the grounds for 
the review that had been sought by residents. Mr Connor, on behalf of the 
applicant, stated that he wished to clarify that the letters of support in the 
agenda papers were in support of the application as operated and not the 
review. 
 
Dr Glanville stated that he was present to represent both himself as a local 
resident and on behalf of the Resident Association. Several issues of concern 
had been raised with the applicant at the meeting held with residents in 
August. At this juncture, Dr Glanville referred to the documentation that had 
been served by the licence holder that day. It was clarified that this 
information had been served on Dr Glanville and the Local Authority but had 
not reached Democratic Services. The Clerk to the Committee had therefore 
not been aware of the documentation until just before the meeting and it had 
not been reproduced for Members. It was then clarified what parts of the 
documentation had been agreed could be submitted to Members. 
 
Dr Glanville stated that some of the documentation had been presented to the 
meeting held in August but had not been addressed satisfactorily. Taxi 
collection and drop off was ineffective and often blocked the entrance to 
Coldharbour, causing arguments with residents. Since Managers Road was 
wider, Dr Glanville asked that consideration was given to setting up a pick up 
and drop off point there and that highway signage should be set up to indicate 
this. 
 
The noise from patrons waiting on taxis was also an issue and Dr Glanville 
asked that the premise’s hours be reduced to midnight on Saturday and 
Sunday to address this. 
 
The two other issues of concern related to the time deliveries took place and 
also the timing of rubbish collection. The noise from the extractor fan that was 
left on overnight was a source of concern and Members were asked to amend 
this condition to ensure that no appliances were left on overnight. 
 

Page 16



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 16/03/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

3 

Before beginning his submission, Mr Connor indicated that there were two 
matters he wished to raise through the Chair. He wished to establish the basis 
of the review which was in the sole name of Mr Glanville and wished to 
ascertain whether the review had been submitted by one individual or on 
behalf of the R.A. Also, how many residents were in the R.A. and had all the 
residents been invited to join the Association. 
 
Regarding the extractor fan, there was no knowledge or information as to 
whether any complaints had been made to EH and whether or not they had 
provided advice accordingly. EH had made no representation to this 
application. 
 
Mr Connor continued with his submission, advising that the premise, which 
was now mainly food led, had been operated by the Premises Licence holder 
since 2004 though there had been a pub on the site for a number of years 
previously. Over 50% of sales were now food and the premise was marketed 
to the high end of the market with no drinks promotions. 
 
This was a stable management group that tried to maintain good relationships 
with neighbours. There were no EH or Police issues and they had no 
comment to make regarding the review application. No complaints had ever 
been received from any of the statutory authorities. 
 
The issues raised at previous meetings held with residents had been 
addressed as much as possible; contractors had been asked to adhere to the 
agreed hours of delivery which were not before 8am. The minutes of the 
August meeting had been taken in order to move things forward. Mr Connor 
presented the minutes of this meeting which Dr Glanville stated were not a 
reflection of what had taken place. In response, Mr Connor stated that the 
minutes had been emailed to Ms Magee, the RA representative, and no reply 
had been received to indicate that they were not acceptable. The Licence 
Holder had attempted to meet with Dr Glanville who had declined to accept 
this offer. 
 
Noise from patrons on leaving the premise was minimised as much as 
possible. This was not a rowdy clientele though staff did manage the door in 
order to speak to those customers who were perhaps a bit noisier and 
signage was in place. No regulated entertainment was provided at the 
premise. 
 
Parking was an issue though Mr Connor queried whether this was a Licensing 
issue and there was little or nothing either the applicant or others could do to 
address this. However customers were asked to be considerate when 
parking.   
 
The extraction fan equipment was an ongoing issue and though attenuation 
works were currently underway, there had been no EH involvement.  
 
A smoking area was provided at the rear and whilst it was not possible to stop 
people from smoking in the street at the front, this was discouraged. A 
relationship had been established with one taxi company and there was a 

Page 17



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 16/03/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

4 

strict policy of no music, horn tooting or banging doors in place. It was not 
possible to ensure that all patrons used this company and the licence holder 
had no control over customer taxi use. 
 
This was a responsibly run premise doing its best in the location it was to 
address and uphold the licensing objectives. 
 
In response to questions from Members, Dr Glanville stated that the 
discrepancies between what had been said and what was in the agenda and 
the fact that the applicant had said that these could not be controlled showed 
the need for the Sub Committee to consider the matter rather than meetings 
with the licence holder. 
 
Whilst a number of patrons were local residents, a number were not and they 
were not as considerate of their behaviour on leaving the premises. Rubbish 
was still being collected earlier than the hours stated. 
 
Mr Connor stated that this all needed to be viewed in the context of where the 
premise was located and that no complaints had been raised by any resident 
since the last meeting in August until notice of the review application had 
been received. Attention was drawn to the letters of support for the premise. 
 
Mr Skerratt, Coldharbour resident, spoke in support of the premise. He had 
lived in the area for several years and had found the management to be both 
responsible and responsive and patrons quick to disperse. When he had 
raised the issue of outside smoking, signage was immediately put in place. 
Mr Skerratt detailed several anecdotal instances to support his comments. 
 
Dr Glanville advised that as to the membership of the R.A. and said that he 
was not aware of any other similar organisations within the immediate area. 
Evidence to support the review had been collected over several months and 
he personally had called EH on several occasions over the last few years. In 
respect of parking, it should be noted that the majority of those who supported 
the licence holder lived in Concordia Wharf and did not have resident parking 
availability in Coldharbour. 
 
The Licensing Officer confirmed that the file recorded EH complaints received 
by the Noise Team in respect of noise from patrons on leaving the premise 
but no complaints regarding deliveries or the extraction fan. 
 
In conclusion, Mr Connor reported that the review procedure should be the 
last resort and that other avenues of communication had not been explored. 
The licence holder had initiated the meeting with residents. Mr Connor again 
queried the representation covered by the R.A. and Dr Glanville’s 
representation on behalf of the R.A. 
 
Dr Glanville reported that even after communicating with the premise’s 
management, nothing had improved. 
 
The Chair advised that the Sub Committee would now, at 7.26pm, adjourn to 
consider the evidence presented. The Sub Committee reconvened at 7.45pm. 

Page 18



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 16/03/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

5 

 
The Chair reported that he would ask the Legal Officer to outline the details of 
the decision and advised that the Sub Committee had  
 
RESOLVED   
 
The application to review the Premises Licence for The Gun PH, 27 
Coldharbour, London E14 9NS was granted in part, and the following 
amendments and additions to the licence were agreed: 
 
Condition 5 of Annexe 3 of the current licence to be amended to: 
 
No disposal of waste materials to be placed in the external bins between 
11pm and 7am and no collection of waste materials to take place during these 
hours. 
 
Additional conditions: 
 
No deliveries to the premises to take place between 11pm and 7am. 
 
Signage to be placed externally at the front of the premises advising patrons 
not to smoke in this area and directing patrons to the smoking area at the rear 
of the premises.  
 
At this point, the Chair agreed to vary the order of business and take Item 5.3 
next, however the business has been recorded as detailed in the agenda. 
 

5.2 Application for a new Premises Licence for Lane Foods, 114 Brick Lane, 
London E1 6RL  
 
Mr Ali introduced the application for a 24 hour licence for the sale by retail of 
alcohol (off-licence). Objections had been received from EH and the Police 
 
Mr Islam, on behalf of the Applicant, told the Sub Committee that a 24 hour 
licence was sought in order to provide a 24 hour convenience store that also 
sold alcohol, as this was the only way that the premises could remain 
financially viable. 
 
In addition to the provision of food, toiletries, etc. a fee free cash point facility 
would be available; a facility that was not available in the immediate area and 
no other off-licence in the vicinity was open 24 hours. 
 
No resident objections had been made including from those above and 
adjacent to the shop. This was a small shop unit that did not cater for large 
numbers of people and was mainly used by local residents. The door would 
be kept close and CCTV provided. Mr Islam concluded by stating that if 
residents had no objections to make, he did not see how EH could object. The 
applicant also owned a bar on Brick Lane and enjoyed a good relationship 
with the police. 
 

Page 19



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 16/03/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

6 

PC Jackson advised that Brick Lane was a main hotspot for crime and 
disorder and he believed that allowing the premise to open for 24 hours would 
see and increase in crime and disorder and also public nuisance, particularly 
in the early hours. The Police would not wish to see the premise operate 
beyond 2am on some days; whilst there had been many applications for 24 
hour licences, all had substantially accepted police recommendations 
regarding opening hours and conditions but in this case, the applicant wished 
to pursue 24 hours. 
 
PC Jackson stated that he believed the premises would likely attract rough 
drinkers and sleepers and that once it became known that a premise in Brick 
Lane was open 24 hours, custom would be attracted from a much wider area. 
There was no need for a premise to be open for the sale of alcohol throughout 
the night and the proposed hours of operation of 8am to 2am, whilst being 
outside the Licensing Policy, had been accepted by other applicants. 
 
PC Jackson requested that if the licence were to be granted, that a condition 
was attached requiring the installation of CCTV to include coverage of the 
outside of the premises and also that a Personal Licence holder who had an 
industry recognised qualification, was on the premise after 20:00 each 
evening in order to uphold the licensing objectives. 
 
Mr Johnson, Environmental Protection officer, drew Members’ attention to the 
framework hours in the Licensing Policy and the DCMS guidance. Over the 
last few weeks, Environmental Health’s observations of off-licences and take- 
away premises in the area had shown that off-licence’s open at 1.30am or 
later had groups of people drinking outside the premises. Mr Johnson 
supported the police concerns regarding likely problems with street drinkers 
and that EH observations showed that the majority of those buying alcohol at 
late hours were already intoxicated. In light of those factors, EH had proposed 
the hours detailed in their representation. 
 
Mr Islam, the applicant’s representative, stated that if a customer did not have 
ID or appeared to be intoxicated, they would not be served. He reiterated that 
whilst there were other shops selling alcohol, they were only for alcohol – their 
premise sold a wide variety of goods. There were other types of premise that 
caused noise nuisance due to people hanging around outside eating. 
 
In response to questions from Members, Mr Islam said that they would train 
staff to deal with underage sales and that appropriate signage would be in 
place. In addition to the cash point, there would also be a PayPoint for the 
payment of bills and topping up pre-pay energy meters. This was in response 
to customers saying that there was nowhere to buy food and other necessities 
late at night. 
 
Sergeant Nick Parson, Safer Neighbourhoods Team, Brick Lane, reported 
that he had received complaints regarding anti-social behaviour from 
residents, especially regarding noise and public urination in the early hours of 
the morning. Whilst local people may well form the majority of customers 
using the shop, alcohol abuse amongst youth was of great concern in the 
area and he was personally aware that alcohol being brought in premises 

Page 20



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 16/03/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

7 

such as these. The applicant had previously stated that the sale of alcohol 
was needed in order to sustain the hours which supported the experience and 
views already expressed by the police. 
 
Councillor Islam asked how the Licensing Objective regarding the Prevention 
of Public Nuisance would be upheld. Mr Islam stated that the applicant 
managed the additional bar premise with without problems and that there was 
CCTV in place which would show that customers were challenged as to their 
age. 
   
At this juncture, 9.27pm, the Chair advised that Members would now adjourn 
to consider the evidence presented.  The Clerk advised that as the length of 
the adjournment was unknown and the Sub Committee had sat for almost 
three hours, it was necessary to agree to extend the meeting. It was therefore 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That, in accordance with Para. 9.1 of Part 4 of the Constitution, the meeting 
be extended until such time as the business in hand was concluded.  
 
The Sub Committee subsequently adjourned and reconvened at 9.37pm 
when the Chair reported that Members had 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the application for a new Premises Licence for Lane Foods, 114 Brick 
Lane, London E1 6RL be GRANTED subject to amendment and the following 
conditions: 
 
Hours for the Sale of Alcohol: 09:00 to Midnight Monday to Saturday, 10:00 to 
23:00 Sunday 
 
CCTV to be installed and cameras positioned to view people entering the 
premise and also one directly outside the premise. The CCTV system shall 
incorporate a recording facility and any recordings shall be retained and 
stored in a suitable and secure manner for a minimum of one calendar month. 
A system shall be in place to maintain the quality of the recorded image and a 
complete audit trail maintained. The system will comply with other essential 
legislation and all signs as required will be clearly displayed. The system will 
be maintained and fully operational throughout the hours that the premises 
are open for any licensable activity.  
 
To adhere to the licensing objectives, the DPS, a Personal Licence Holder or 
a manager who has written permission, which can be supplied to the police or 
other responsible authority, to be on the premise from 20:00 each day. 
 

5.3 Application for a variation of the Premises Licence for Brick Lane 
Perfect Fried Chicken, 102 Brick Lane, London E1 6RL  
 

Page 21



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 16/03/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

8 

Mr Ali introduced the report and advised as to the representations and that 
revised hours which were tabled, had been agreed following discussions with 
the Police.  
 
The applicant’s representative, Ms Merry, stated that the variation applied for 
was both considerate and moderate; affecting the hours operated Thursday to 
Saturday. 
 
No complaints had been received since the premise had opened in January 
and EH had objected on the grounds that the application may cause nuisance 
to residents. No resident had raised objection, either to the applicant or EH. 
This was a busy area with a number of late night premises and a number of 
premises that operated later hours than was being applied for here. 
 
The application had been submitted in response to customer demand and 
would also cater for shift workers. The applicant was fully aware of the 
licensing objectives and had experience in managing late night premises. 
 
Mr Johnson, Environmental Health Enforcement Officer, said that objection to 
the application had been submitted on the basis of the public nuisance that 
would be caused patrons using the shop at increasingly late hours. The area 
in which the shop was located was highly residential and the premises itself 
was directly below and adjacent to residential premises. 
 
Given the proximity of the outlet to late night drinking venues, it was not 
inconceivable that the patrons of the fast food outlet would be loud and 
congregate outside the premises, causing a nuisance to the people who lived 
nearby. Accordingly, EH had proposed that the terminal hour on Friday and 
Saturday nights should be 01:00, with the premise closing at midnight on all 
other nights. In addition, there were no licensed premises open in Brick Lane 
until the hour suggested by the applicant with the exception of the Bagel shop. 
 
In response to questions from members, the applicant’s representative stated 
that managing customers who appeared to be intoxicated was a matter of 
experience. CCTV would also be installed if the application was granted. 
 
At this juncture, the Chair advised that the Sub Committee would now, at 
8.25pm, adjourn to consider the evidence presented. The Sub Committee 
reconvened at 8.45pm and the Chair reported that Members had 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the application for a variation of the Premises Licence for Brick Lane 
Perfect Fried Chicken, 102 Brick Lane, London E1 6RL, be GRANTED 
subject to amendment and the following conditions: 
 
The variation to the hours for the provision of regulated entertainment was not 
granted. (Hours to remain as per current licence). 
 
Opening Hours of the Premises: 11:30 to Midnight Sunday to Wednesday, 
11:30 to 00:30 Thursday to Saturday 

Page 22



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 16/03/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

9 

 
Hours for the Provision of Late Night Refreshment: 23:00 to Midnight Sunday 
to Wednesday, 23:00 to 00:30 Thursday to Saturday. 
 
CCTV to be installed at the premise to cover both floors and also to cover 
people entering the front door and immediately outside the front door. 
 
The CCTV system shall incorporate a recording facility and any recordings 
shall be retained and stored in a suitable and secure manner for a minimum of 
one calendar month. A system shall be in place to maintain the quality of the 
recorded image and a complete audit trail maintained. The system will comply 
with other essential legislation and all signs as required will be clearly 
displayed. The system will be maintained and fully operational throughout the 
hours that the premises are open for any licensable activity. 
 
There will be a member of staff on the premise that can operate the CCTV 
and be able to download any incident onto a disc if required to do so by a 
police officer or any other relevant authority. 
 
Waste materials shall not be placed in the external bins during the night hours 
(23:00 to 07:00 hours the following day)   
 

 
 

The meeting ended at 9.40 p.m.  
 
 

Chair, Councillor Rajib Ahmed 
Licensing Sub Committee 

 

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



  
Committee: 
 
Licensing Sub-committee 
 

Date:  
 
20/04/2009 

Classification 
 
Unclassified 

Report No. 
 
LSC072/809 

Agenda Item 
No. 
5.1 

 
 
Report of:  Colin Perrins 
Head of Trading Standards and Environmental 
Health (Commercial) 
 
Originating Officer:  
Nick Kemp 
Licensing Officer 

 
Title:  Licensing Act 2003  
Application for a variation of the Premises Licence for 
Kivre Food Centre, 497-499 Cambridge Heath Road, 
E2 9BU 
 
Ward affected:  
Bethnal Green North 

 
1.0 Summary 

 
Applicant: Mr Ibrahim Bagcih & Mr Hussein Ordu 

2.0  
Name and  Kivre Food Centre,  
Address of Premises: 497-499 Cambridge Heath Road, E2 9BU 
    
Licence sought:  Variation of premises licence under the 

Licensing Act 2003 
 

To amend the hours  for the provision of 
licensable activities 

 
Representations: Environmental Protection 
  Metropolitan Police 
   
 
   

3.0 Recommendations 
 

3.1 That the Licensing Committee considers the application and objections 
then adjudicate accordingly. 

 
 
 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT  2000 (Section 97) 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE DRAFTING OF THIS REPORT 

 
   
 Brief description of "background paper" Tick if copy supplied for 

register 
 

If not supplied, name and telephone 
number of holder 

 
File Only 
 

 Nick Kemp 
020 7364  7446 

 

Agenda Item 5.1

Page 25



 
4.0 Background 
 

4.1 This is an application for a variation of the premises licence for Kivre Food 
Centre, 497-499 Cambridge Heath Road, E2 9BU by extending the times 
for the supply of alcohol. They are not licensed for any other activities.  

 
4.2 A copy of the existing licence is enclosed as Appendix 1. 
 

Current licensing times. 
 
The sale by retail of alcohol 

 
 Monday to Sunday 10:00 – 23:00 
 

 
Hours premises are open to the public: 
 
Monday to Sunday from 06:00 – 01:00. 

 

 
4.3 A copy of the application is enclosed as Appendix 2.  
 
4.4 The applicant has described the nature of the variation as follows: 

• An existing shop with a premises licence.  
 

The hours that have been applied for are as follows:- 
 
Supply of alcohol 
 
Monday to Sunday: 24 hours pre day 
 

 
Hours premises are open to the public: 

 
Monday to Sunday: 24 hours per day. 

 
 

4.5 A map showing the situation of premises in the local area is included in 
Appendix 3.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26



5.0 Licensing Policy and Government Advice 
 
5.1 The Council has adopted a licensing policy and this is available from the 

Licensing Section, and at the hearing. The policy was adopted by the Full 
Council on the 8 December 2004. 

 
5.2 Relevant Sections of the policy are brought to the attention of Members 

within the Licensing Officers report.  
 
5.3 The Government Minister, the Secretary of State for Culture, Media and 

Sport has issued Guidance under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. 
This is available on the Government’s website, www.culture.gov.uk. It was 
substantially revised on the 28 June 2007. 

 
5.4 Relevant Sections of this advice are brought to Members attention within 

the Licensing Officers report. Members should note however, than in some 
areas Tower Hamlets, after a proper consideration of local circumstances, 
has not followed the Government’s advice, or has developed it further. 

 
 

6.0 Representations 
 
6.1 All representations have to meet basic legal and administrative 

requirements. If they fail to do so they cannot be accepted. When rejected 
the person sending in the representation must be written to, and an 
explanation for rejection given in writing. 

 
6.2 Interested party as defined in Section 13 (3) of the Licensing Act 2003 is 

limited to persons living in the vicinity of the premises, their representatives 
and local businesses in the vicinity of the premises and their 
representatives. Essentially, the interested party making the representation 
should show by what they say that they, or those they represent are 
sufficiently close to be personally affected by the application.  

 
6.3 Only a responsible authority or an interested party can make a 

representation. Both of these terms are defined by statute, in Section 13 of 
the Licensing Act 2003.  

 
6.4 There are two tests for an interested party and only one for a responsible 

authority. The two tests are contained in Section 18 of the Act. 
 
6.5 All representations must be “about the likely effect of the grant of the 

premises licence on the promotion of the licensing objectives.” Likely 
means something that will probably happen, i.e. on balance more likely 
than not. 

 
6.6 Representations by responsible authorities do not have to meet the second 

test of not being vexatious and frivolous. Interested parties and their 
representatives have to meet this test. 

 

Page 27



6.7 The Secretary of State recommends that in borderline cases, the benefit of 
the doubt should be given to the interested party making the 
representation. 

 
6.8 Section 182 Advice by the DCMS concerning relevant, vexatious and 

frivolous representations is attached as Appendix 5. 
 
6.9 The representation in this report has been considered by the relevant 

officer (Team Leader Licensing) and determined to have met the 
requirements of the Licensing Act 2003 

 
6.10 All of the responsible authorities have been consulted about this 

application. They are as follows: 
• The Metropolitan Police 
• The LFEPA (the London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority). 
• Planning 
• Health and Safety 
• Environmental Protection 
• Trading Standards 
• Child Protection 

 
6.11 This hearing is required by the Licensing Act 2003, because relevant 

representations have been made by: 
Environmental Protection – who request conditions 
Metropolitan Police – who request conditions 
 
Please see Appendix 4 

 
 
6.12 The application was required to be advertised in a local newspaper and by 

a blue poster. In addition the licensing section consulted on a 40 m basis. 
 

6.13 Only objections that relate to the following licensing objectives are relevant: 
• the prevention of crime and disorder 
• public safety 
• the prevention of public nuisance 
• the protection of children from harm  

 
6.14 Essentially, Environmental Protection and the resident oppose the 

application because the applicant has not explained how within the context 
of the application they will meet the licensing objectives, particularly: 

• the prevention of public nuisance 
 

6.15 There are strict time limits to any representations. The time limits are 
contained in The Licensing Act 2003 (Premises licences and club premises 
certificates) Regulations 2005.  

 
 

Page 28



7.0 Licensing Officer Comments 
 

7.1 The Licensing Section is not a responsible authority and therefore has no 
ability to make any relevant representations. The following therefore is 
intended simply to advise Members of the relevant aspects of the 
Boroughs Licensing Policy, guidance from the Secretary of State, 
legislation and good practice. Members may depart from the Council’s 
Licensing Policy and/or Government advice, provide they consider it 
appropriate to do so, and have clear reasons for their decision. 

 
7.2 Guidance issued under section 182 of the licensing Act 2003 
 
� As stated in the guidance it is “provided for licensing authorities carrying 

out this their functions.”  It is a key mechanism for promoting best 
practice, ensuring consistent application and promoting fairness (1.6). 
Also “so long as the guidance has been properly and carefully 
understood and considered, licensing authorities may depart from it if 
they have reason to do so.”  When doing so licensing authorities will 
need to give full reasons for their actions (1.7). 

 
� Also Members should note “A Licensing Authority may depart from its 

own policy if the individual circumstances of any case merit such a 
decision in the interests of the promotion of the licensing objectives.” 
(1.10) 

 
� Conditions may not be imposed for the purpose other than the licensing 

objectives.   
 
� Necessary conditions should emerge from a risk assessment by the 

applicant, which should then be reflected in the operating schedule 
(10.7).  

 
� The Licensing Authority may only impose such conditions as are 

necessary for meeting the licensing objectives. 
 
� It is Government policy that facilities for people and performers with 

disabilities should be provided at places of entertainment. (S. 10.24).  
 

 
� The Government has stated “there is no general presumption in favour 

of lengthening licensing hours and the four licensing objectives should 
be paramount at all times. Where there are objections to an application 
and the committee believes that changing the licensing hours would 
undermine the licensing objectives, they may reject the application or 
grant it with appropriate conditions and/or different hours from those 
requested.”  (10.20) 
 

Page 29



7.3 The Licensing Act 2003 permits children of any age to be on the premises 
providing they are accompanied by an adult. It is not necessary to make 
this a condition. 

 

 
7.4 In all cases the Members should make their decision on the civil burden of 

proof, that is “the balance of probability.” 
 

 
7.5 In all cases Members should consider whether or not primary legislation is 

the appropriate method of regulation and should only consider licence 
conditions when the circumstances in their view are not already adequately 
covered elsewhere.  

 
7.6 The Government has advised that “In the context of preventing public 

nuisance it is again essential that conditions are focused on measures 
within the direct control of the licence holder. Conditions relating to public 
nuisance caused by anti-social behaviour of customers once they are 
beyond the control of the licence holder or premises management cannot 
be justified and will not serve the licensing objectives.” (2.38)  
 

7.7 The Council’s licensing Policy generally expects applicants to address the 
licensing objectives and discuss how to do this with the relevant 
responsible authorities. 

 

 
8.0 Exemptions 
 
8.1 There are a number of statutory exemptions from the operation of the 

Licensing Act 2003, and Members need to bear these in mind. 
 
8.2 Acts of religious worship, wherever performed are not licensable. 
 
8.3 Section 177, (1) and (2) of the Act provides that where a premises (or club) 

is licensed for alcohol consumption on the premises and is primarily thus 
used, and the permitted capacity does not exceed 200, additional 
conditions relating to the music should only relate to public safety or the 
prevention of crime (or both). That is they should not relate to any “noise 
nuisance.” 

 
8.4 Section 177 (4) provides that where a premises licence (or club) has a 

capacity of not more than 200 and the only music is unamplified live music 
between 08 00 hrs and midnight, no additional conditions should be set 
relating to the music. 

 
8.5 Section 177 can be disapplied on a licence review if it is proportionate to 

do so. 
 

Page 30



9.0 Legal Comments 
 
9.1 The Council’s legal officer will give advice at the hearing. 
 
 
10.0 Finance Comments 
 
10.1 There are no financial implications in this report. 
 
 

 
 

 

Page 31



Appendices 
 
 

Appendix 1      A copy of the existing premises licence 
 

Appendix 2      A copy of the variation application 
 

Appendix 3       Maps of the area 
 

Appendix 4 List of objectors 
 

Appendix 5 Details of representations by Environmental                   
Protection 

 
Appendix 6       Details of representations by Metropolitan Police 
  
Appendix 7  Section 182 Advice by the DCMS concerning           

relevant, vexatious and frivolous representations 
 

Appendix 8  Licensing Officer comments on Anti Social Behaviour 
from patrons leaving the premises 

 
Appendix 9 Licensing Officer comments on Access and Egress  
 Problems 
 
Appendix 10 Licensing Officer comments on Planning 
 
Appendix 11 Licensing Policy relating to hours of trading 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

Appendix 4 

Page 63



Page 64



List of Objectors 
 

 

Name Address Content Dates   Appendix 
Environmental 
Protection 

 e-mail dated 12th March 2009 
with a proposed condition 
 

5 

Metropolitan 
Police 

 Letter dated 24th March 2009 
Which includes a request for 
conditions 

6 

    

Page 65



Page 66



 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 5 
 
 

Page 67



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



 
 
 

Appendix 7 

Page 75



Page 76



 
 

Section 182 Advice by the DCMS 
 

RELEVANT, VEXATIOUS AND FRIVOLOUS 
REPRESENTATIONS  
9.8  A representation would only be “relevant” if it relates to the likely 

effect of the grant of the licence on the promotion of at least one of the 
licensing objectives. For example, a representation from a local 
businessman which argued that his business would be commercially 
damaged by a new licensed premises would not be relevant. On the 
other hand, a representation that nuisance caused by the new 
premises would deter customers from entering the local area and the 
steps proposed by the applicant to control that nuisance were 
inadequate would be relevant. There is no requirement for an 
interested party or responsible authority to produce a recorded history 
of problems at a premises to support their representations, and in fact 
this would not be possible for new premises. Further information for 
interested parties about the process for making representations is 
available in “Guidance for interested parties: Making representations” 
which can be found on the DCMS website.  

 
9.9  The “cumulative impact” on the licensing objectives of a 

concentration of multiple licensed premises may also give rise to a 
relevant representation when an application for the grant or variation 
of a premises licence is being considered, but not in relation to an 
application for review which must relate to an individual premises.  

9.10  It is for the licensing authority to determine whether any 
representation by an interested party is frivolous or vexatious on the 
basis of what might ordinarily be considered to be vexatious or 
frivolous. Vexation may arise because of disputes between rival 
businesses and local knowledge will therefore be invaluable in 
considering such matters. Frivolous representations would be 
essentially categorised by a lack of seriousness. An interested party 
who is aggrieved by a rejection of their representations on these 
grounds may challenge the authority’s decision by way of judicial 
review.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 77



 
 
9.11  Licensing authorities should not take decisions on whether 

representations are relevant on the basis of any political judgement. 
This may be difficult for ward councillors receiving complaints from 
residents within their own wards. If consideration is not to be 
delegated, contrary to the recommendation in this Guidance, an 
assessment should be prepared by officials for consideration by the 
subcommittee before any decision is taken that necessitates a 
hearing. Any ward councillor who considers that their own interests 
are such that they are unable to consider the matter independently 
should disqualify themselves.  

 
9.12 The Secretary of State recommends that in borderline cases, the 

benefit of the doubt should be given to the interested party making 
the representation. The subsequent hearing would then provide an 
opportunity for the person or body making the representation to 
amplify and clarify it. If it then emerged, for example, that the 
representation should not be supported, the licensing authority 
could decide not to take any action in respect of the application.  

9.13 Licensing authorities should consider providing advice on their 
websites about how any interested party can make representations 
to them.  

 

Page 78



 
 
 
 

Appendix 8 

Page 79



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 80



 Anti-Social Behaviour From Patrons Leaving The 
Premises  
 
General Advice 
 
Members need to bear in mind that once patrons have left a premises 
they are no longer under direct control. Members will need to be satisfied 
that there is a link between the way the premises is operating and the 
behaviour that is complained of. An example of this would be that 
irresponsible drinking is being encouraged.  Before deciding that any 
particular licensing conditions are proportionate, Members will also need 
to be satisfied that other legislation is not a more effective route.  For 
example, if the problem is drinking in the street it may be that the Council 
should designate the area as a place where alcohol cannot be consumed 
in public. 
 
Members may also wish to consider whether the hours of opening relate 
to any problems of anti-social behaviour.  
 
If Members believe that there is a substantial problem of anti-social 
behaviour and it cannot be proportionately addressed by licensing 
conditions they should refuse the application.  
  
Licensing Policy 
 
The policy recognises that other legislation or measures may be more 
appropriate but also states that licensing laws are “a key aspect of such 
control and will always be part of an overall approach to the management 
of the evening and night time economy.” (See Section 4.10 and 4.11 of 
the Licensing Policy). 
 
The Licensing Authority expects the applicant to have addressed all crime 
and disorder issues relating to the premises in their operating schedule 
and to have sought appropriate advice. (See Sections 5.2 of the 
Licensing Policy) 
 
The Licensing Authority will consider attaching conditions to deter crime 
and disorder and these may include Conditions drawn from the Model 
Poll of Conditions relating to Crime and Disorder. (See Appendix 2 
Annex D of the Licensing Policy). In particular Members may wish to 
consider (this list is not exhaustive): 
 
• Bottle Bans 
• Plastic containers 
• CCTV (outside the premises) 
• Restrictions on open containers for “off sales” 
• Proof of Age scheme 
• Crime prevention notices 
• Drinks promotions-aimed at stopping irresponsible promotions 

Page 81



• Signage 
 
Cumulative Impact 
 
There is a process by which the Licensing Authority can determine that 
an area is saturated following representations.  However, the process for 
this involves wide consultation and cannot come from representations 
about a particular application. (See Section 6 of the Licensing Policy). 
 
Police Powers 
 
The Licensing Act 2003, Part 8 gives a senior police officer the power to 
close a premises for up to 24 hours where the officer believes there is, or 
is likely to be disorder on or in the vicinity and closure is necessary in the 
interests of public. 
 
Guidance Issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. 
The pool of conditions, adopted by the council is recommended (13.20). 
The key role of the police is acknowledged (2.2).   
Conditions attached to licences cannot seek to manage the behaviour of 
customers once they are beyond the direct management of the licence 
holder, but can relate to the immediate vicinity of the premises as they 
seek entry or leave (2.4).  
Conditions are best targeted on deterrence and preventing crime and 
disorder (S.2.6) communication, police liaison, no glasses are all relevant 
(s.2.7-2.11). 
There is also guidance issued around the heading of “public nuisance as 
follows 
The pool of conditions, adopted by the council is recommended (Annexe 
D). 
Licence conditions should not duplicate other legislation (1.16). 
Necessary and appropriate conditions should normally focus on the most 
sensitive periods and may address disturbance as customers enter or 
leave the premises (2.36) but it is essential that conditions are focused on 
measures “within the direct control of the licence holder” (2.38). 
 
Other Legislation 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 
The Council has a duty under Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 
1998 to do all it reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder. 
 
The Act also introduced a wide range of measures designed to address 
anti-social behaviour committed by adults and young people. These 
include: 
• Anti-Social Behaviour Orders 
• Child Curfew Schemes 
• Truancy 
• Parenting Orders 
• Reparation Orders 
• Tackling Racism 

Page 82



 
 
 

Appendix 9 

Page 83



Page 84



 
Access and egress problems 
 
Such as: 
Disturbance from patrons arriving/leaving the premises on foot 
Disturbance from patrons arriving/leaving the premises by car 
Lack of adequate car parking facilities 
Close proximity to residential properties 
 
Comment 
 
The above have been grouped together as egress problems.  Of course 
the particular facts will be different for each alleged problem. 
 
General Advice 
 
In considering concerns relating to disturbance from egress, Members 
need to be satisfied that the premises under consideration has been 
identified as the source of the actual or potential disturbance. If they are 
satisfied that this is a problem, then proportionate conditions should be 
considered. 
 
The hours of operation also need to be considered. 
 
If Members believe that there is a substantial problem concerning egress 
and it cannot be proportionately addressed by licensing conditions, they 
should refuse the application. 
 
Licensing Policy 
 
The policy recognises that noise nuisance can be an issue, especially if a 
premises is open late at night. (See Sections 8.1 of the Licensing 
Policy). 
 
The Licensing Authority expects the applicant to have addressed all 
nuisance issues relating to the premises in their operating schedule and 
to have sought appropriate advice from the Council’s Environmental 
Health Officers. (See Sections 8.2 of the Licensing Policy, and also 
Section 12.5).  
 
The policy also recognises that staggered closing can help prevent 
problems at closure time (See Section 12.1). 
 
However, while all applications will be considered on their merits, 
consideration will be given to imposing stricter conditions in respect of 
noise control where premises are situated close to local residents. (See 
Section 12.4)  
 
The Licensing Authority will consider attaching conditions to prevent 
nuisance and these may include Conditions drawn from the Model Poll of 

Page 85



Conditions relating to the prevention of Public Nuisance. (See Appendix 
2 Annex G of the Licensing Policy). In particular Members may wish to 
consider (this list is not exhaustive): 

• hours of opening (this needs to be balanced against potential 
disorder caused by artificially early closing times 

• Whether certain parts should close earlier than the rest (for 
example a “beer garden”, or restricted in their use   

• Whether or not certain activities should have to close at an early 
hour, for example live music 

• Conditions controlling noise or vibration (for example, noise 
limiters, keeping doors and windows closed). 

• Prominent clear and legible notices at all exits requesting the 
public to respect the needs of local residents and leave the 
premises and area quietly 

 
Guidance Issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003  
The pool of conditions, adopted by the council is recommended (13.20 
and Annex D). 
The prevention of public nuisance could include low-level nuisance, 
perhaps affecting a few people living locally as well as major disturbance 
affecting the whole community. (2.33). 
Licence conditions should not duplicate other legislation (1.16). 
Necessary and appropriate conditions should normally focus on the most 
sensitive periods and may address disturbance as customers enter or 
leave the premises (2.36) but it is essential that conditions are focused on 
measures within the direct control of the licence holder” (2.38). 
In certain circumstances conditions relating to noise in the immediate 
vicinity of the premises may also prove necessary to address any 
disturbance anticipated as customers enter and leave (2.36).  
However, it is essential that conditions are focused on measures within 
the direct control of the licence holder. Conditions relating to behaviour 
once they are beyond the control of the licence holder cannot be justified. 
(2.38)  

Page 86



 
 
 

Appendix 10 

Page 87



Page 88



Planning 
 

An application for a Premises Licence can be made in respect of a 
premises even where the premises does not have relevant Planning 
Permission.  That application has to be considered and Members can 
only refuse the application where the application itself does not promote 
one of more of the Licensing Objectives.  Members cannot refuse just 
because there is no planning permission.  Where a Premises Licence is 
granted and which exceeds what is allowed by the Planning Permission 
and that Premises then operates in breach of planning then the operator 
would be liable to enforcement by Planning. 

 
 
 

Page 89



Page 90



 
 
 

Appendix 11 

Page 91



 

Page 92



Licensing Policy relating to hours of trading 
 

All applications have to be considered on their own merits.      
 
The Council has however adopted a set of framework hours as follows 
Sunday to Thursday   06 00 hrs to 23 30 hrs 
Friday and Saturday 06 00 hrs to midnight 
(see 12.8 0f the licensing policy) 
 
In considering the applicability of frame work hours to any particular 
application regard should be had to the following 

• Location 
• Proposed hours of regulated activities, and the proposed hours the 

premises are open to the public 
• The adequacy of the applicants proposals to deal with issues of 

crime and disorder and public nuisance 
• Previous history 
• Access to public transport 
• Proximity to other licensed premises, and their hours 

(see 12.8 of the licensing policy) 
 
Subject to any representations to the contrary in individual cases the 
following premises are not generally considered to contribute to late night 
anti-social behaviour and will therefore generally have greater freedom 

• Theatres 
• Cinemas 
• Premises with club premises certificates 
• Premises licensed for off sales only 
 

 

Page 93



Page 94

This page is intentionally left blank



Gambling Act 2005 - Order of Proceedings 
 

 
 
The Sub Committee may be asked to consider whether representations made are valid, 
frivolous or vexatious and will adjudicate accordingly. 
 
If it is considered that there are valid representations, the Licensing Officer will present the 
report. 
 
The Applicant or their representative will then present their case and, with permission 
call witnesses and will also if appropriate respond to the objections raised as well as 
raising any issues relating to the validity of the representations.  
 
The Sub Committee will receive the representations from the interested parties and/or 
Responsible Authorities who may: 
 

- present their objections to the Sub Committee and, with permission, call witnesses 
 
With the permission of the Chair, any party including the Applicant may, via a Member of 
the Sub Committee, ask questions or seek clarification of the other parties present once 
they have addressed the Sub Committee. 
 
The Sub Committee will have the opportunity to raise questions or seek clarification with 
all parties, throughout the proceedings 
 
(N.B. Although no specific time limit is applied to each individual objection the 
Sub Committee will look not to hear repetitive objections. In addition, if necessary the 
Chair may apply time limits.) 
 
The Sub Committee will retire to consider the evidence presented to them both orally and 
in writing following which the meeting will reconvene and the Chair will report the decision 
of the Sub Committee 
. 
Note: The Sub Committee may adjourn proceedings at any time and retire to consider 
any matters relating to the application. 
 

 

Agenda Item 5.2

Page 95



Page 96

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Committee : 
 
Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

Date:  
 
20/04/2009 

Classification: 
 
Unclassified 

Report 
No. 
LSC073
/809 

Agenda 
Item No. 
5.2 

 
Report of:  Colin Perrins 
 
Head of Trading Standards and Environmental 
Health Commercial 
 
Originating Officer:  
Mohshin Ali 
Licensing Officer 
 

Title:  Gambling Act 2005  
 
Application for a new Premises Licence Coral, 56 Bow 
Common Lane, London E3 4DE 
 
Ward affected:  
Bromley-by-Bow  

 
 
1.0 Summary 

 
Applicant   Coral Racing Ltd 
Name    

 
Address of Premises:  56 Bow Common Lane, 
  London 
  E3 4DE 
 
Licence sought:  New Premises Licence 

• Betting (other) 
 

 
 

Representations:  Local residents 
  Representatives of local residents 
 
  

2.0 Recommendations 
 

2.1 That the Licensing Committee considers the application and objections 
then adjudicate accordingly. 

 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT  2000 (Section 97) 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE DRAFTING OF THIS REPORT 

 
   
Brief description of "background paper" Tick if copy supplied 

for register 
 

If not supplied, name and 
telephone number of holder 

 
File Only 
 

  
Mohshin Ali 
020 7364 5498 

 

Page 97



 
3.0 Background 
 
3.1 This is an application for a new premises licence for Coral, 56 Bow 

Common Lane, London E3 4DE. 
 
3.2 A copy of the application is enclosed as Appendix 1. The applicant has 

described the premises as follows: 
“Self contained ground floor lock up shop in a five storey building 
with residential above”. 

 
3.3 The application is for off-track betting, which is more commonly known 

as a “Bookies.” 
 
3.4 A map showing the relevant premises is included as Appendix 2.  
 
 
4.0 Licensing Policy for Gambling, and Gambling Commission advice. 
 
4.1 The Council has adopted a licensing policy in relation to gambling and 

this is available from the Licensing Section, and at the hearing. The 
policy was adopted by the Full Council on the 13 December 2006. 

 
4.2 Relevant Sections of the policy are brought to the attention of Members 

within the Licensing Officers report.  
 
4.3 The Gambling Commission has issued guidance to Licensing Authorities 

which will also be available at the hearing. It can also be viewed at 
www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk. Relevant Sections can be found 
within the licensing officer’s report.  

 
4.4 Relevant Sections of this advice are brought to Members attention within 

the Licensing Officers report. Members should note however, than in 
some areas Tower Hamlets, after a proper consideration of local 
circumstances, has not followed the commission’s advice, or has 
developed it further. 

 
 
5.0 Representations 
 
5.1 This hearing is required by the gambling Act 2005 because 

representations have been made by local residents and representatives 
of local residents. 

 
5.2 The representations relate to: 

• Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being 
harmed or exploited by gambling 

 
 

Page 98



5.3 Please see Appendix 3 for the representation of Babu Bhattacherjee of 
Poplar Harca.  

 
5.4 Please see Appendix 4 for the representation of Mat Sheldon of the 

Licoln and Burdett Children’s Centre. 
 
5.5 Please see Appendix 5 for the representation of Fr Aidan Peter Rossiter 

the Catholic Parish Priest of Holy Name Church. 
 
5.6 In addition a petition of 115 people has been submitted by Sultana 

Begum (Appendix 6). Members can refer to the map in Appendix 2 to 
see where the residents’ addresses are in relation to the premises. 

 
5.7 It should be noted that 17 of the people that appear on the petition are 

too far away to be considered as someone who “lives sufficiently close to 
the premises to be likely to be affected by the authorised activities”. 
Members should disregard the people who are listed in Appendix 7. In 
relation to the rest, Members must, in each case consider the extent to 
which a person will, in fact, experience the problems they are 
complaining of. 

 
5.8 An interested party is defined as someone who: 
 
       (a) lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected  
            by the authorised activities, 
       (b) has business interests that might be affected by the  
            authorised activities, or 
       (c) represents persons who satisfy paragraph (a) or (b) 
 
5.9 The application was required to be advertised in a local newspaper and 

by a poster at the premises. 
 
5.10 The licensing objectives are: 

• Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being 
associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime 

• Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way 
• Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or 

exploited by gambling 
 
5.11 Members should note that moral a moral objection to gambling is not 

relevant to the decision making process (See Appendix 11). 
 
5.12 In addition, children are not permitted on an off-track betting premises 

(See Appendix 13). There are however, a number of other premises 
where they are permitted and they may witness gambling, the most 
obvious being shops that sell lottery and scratch card tickets. 

 
5.13 There are time limits to any representations. These are contained in the 

Gambling Act 2005 (Premises Licences and Provisional Statements) 
Regulations 2007. 

Page 99



 
6.0 Licensing Officer Comments 
 
6.1 The Licensing Section is also a responsible authority but does not wish 

to make to make any representations. The following is intended simply to 
advise Members of the relevant aspects of the Gambling commission’s 
advice and the Borough Gambling Policy. Members may depart from the 
advice, provide they consider it appropriate to do so, and have clear 
reasons for their decision. 

 
6.2 Guidance issued to Licensing Authorities by the Gambling Commission 
 

• Gambling Commission advice on the Principles to be applied 
when considering applications (Appendix 8) 

 
• Gambling Commission Advice on the Licensing Objective of 
Preventing Gambling from being a Source of Crime (Appendix 9) 

 
• Gambling Commission Advice on Protecting Children and Other 
Vulnerable Persons from being Harmed or Exploited by Gambling 
(Appendix 10) 

 
• Gambling Commission Advice on Moral Objections (Appendix 

11) 
 

• Gambling Commission Advice on Premises Licences (Appendix 
12) 

 
• Gambling Commission Advice on Off-track Betting (Appendix 13) 
there are mandatory conditions which must apply to this 
application. There are also default conditions concerning hours, 
which will apply in this case as no dis-application has been made 
by the applicant. 

 
6.3   The Gambling Policy of the London Borough of Tower Hamlets 
 

• London Borough of Tower Hamlets Gambling Policy 
Definition of vulnerable person (1.46) (Appendix 14) 

 
• London Borough of Tower Hamlets Gambling Policy relating to 
betting machines on betting premises (Appendix 15) 

  
7.0 Legal Comments 
 
7.1 The Council’s legal officer will give advice at the hearing. 
 
 
8.0 Finance Comments 
 
8.1 There are no financial implications in this report. 

Page 100



 
 
 
 
9.0    Appendices 

 
Appendix 1     A copy of the application 

 
Appendix 2     Maps of the area 
 
Appendix 3 Representation of Babu Bhattacherjee of Poplar Harca.  
 
Appendix 4 Representation of Mat Sheldon of the Licoln and Burdett 

Children’s Centre 
 
Appendix 5 Representation of Fr Aidan Peter Rossiter the Catholic 

Parish Priest of Holy Name Church. 
 

Appendix 6 A petition from local residents 
 
Appendix 7 List of residents that are too far away from the premises. 
 
Appendix 8     Gambling Commission advice on the Principles to be 

applied when considering applications  
 
Appendix 9 Gambling Commission Advice on the Licensing Objective 

of Preventing Gambling from being a Source of Crime 
 
Appendix 10 Gambling Commission Advice on Protecting Children and 

Other Vulnerable Persons from being Harmed or 
Exploited by Gambling 

 
Appendix 11 Gambling Commission Advice on Moral Objections 
 
Appendix 12 Gambling Commission Advice on Premises Licences 
 
Appendix 13 Gambling Commission Advice on Off-track Betting 

 
Appendix 14 London Borough of Tower Hamlets Gambling Policy 

Definition of vulnerable person (1.46) 
 

Appendix 15 London Borough of Tower Hamlets Gambling Policy 
relating to betting machines on betting premises 

  

Page 101



Page 102

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Appendix 2 
A map showing the residents’ addresses are in relation to the 
premises 

 
Scale – 1:10,000 
 

  

CORAL 

Weatherley Close 

Watts Grove 

Burgess St 

Joseph St 

Thomas Rd 

Wallwood St 

Dod St 

Copenhagen Plc 

Belton Way Bracken House 

Ricardo  St 

Market Way 

Spandy Rd 

Fern St 

Knapp Rd 

Rounton Rd 

Alphabet Sq 

Purdy St 

Rainhill Way 

Page 113



Page 114

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 115



Page 116

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 8 
 

Gambling Commission advice on the Principles to be applied when 
considering applications  
 
 Part 5: Principles to be applied by licensing authorities in Exercising 
their Functions 
 
5.1 In exercising most of their functions under the 2005 Act, licensing authorities 
must have regard to the licensing objectives set out in section 1 of the Act. In 
particular, licensing authorities must have regard to the licensing objectives when 
exercising their functions in relation to premises licences, temporary use notices 
and some permits. The licensing objectives are: 
_ preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being 
associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime; 
_ ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way; and 
_ protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or 
exploited by gambling. 
 
5.2 In considering applications, licensing authorities in England and Wales should 
take 
particular care to bear in mind that these objectives are not the same as those in 
the Licensing Act 2003. In particular, they do not include considerations in 
relation to public safety or prevention of public nuisance. The requirement in 
relation to children is explicitly to protect them from being harmed or exploited 
by gambling. 
 
5.3 Section 153 of the Act provides that in exercising its functions under part 8 of the 
Act (premises licensing and provisional statements), a licensing authority should 
aim to permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as it thinks it: 
(a) in accordance with any relevant code of practice under section 24; 
(b) in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Commission under 
section 25 (ie this document); 
(c) reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives (subject to paragraphs (a) 
and (b)); and 
(d) in accordance with the statement published by the authority under section 349 
(subject to paragraphs (a) to (c)). (See Part 6 of this guidance.) 
 
5.4 Section 153 also makes it clear that in deciding whether or not to grant a licence 
a licensing authority must not have regard to the expected demand for gambling 
premises that are the subject of the application. This is a key difference between 
the 2005 Act and previous legislation on gaming and betting. 
 
5.5 The requirements in section 153 are subject to the licensing authority’s power 
(under section 166) to resolve not to issue casino premises licences. This means 
that a resolution not to issue a casino premises licence applies regardless of the 
matters set out in section 153. 

Page 147



 

Page 148



Appendix 9 
 
 

Gambling Commission Advice on the Licensing Objective of 
Preventing Gambling from being a Source of Crime 
 
5.6 The Commission will play a leading role in preventing gambling from being a 
source of crime. It will maintain rigorous licensing procedures that aim to prevent 
criminals from providing facilities for gambling, or being associated with 
providing such facilities. The Act provides the Commission with powers to 
investigate the suitability of applicants for operating and personal licences, and 
others relevant to the application. This will provide the Commission with the 
power to make enquiries about and investigate those who are involved in the 
control of a company or the provision of gambling. In considering applications for 
operating and personal licences the Commission will, in particular, take a serious 
view of any offences involving dishonesty committed by applicants or persons 
relevant to the application. 
 
5.7 As applicants for premises licences (except occupiers of tracks who do not 
propose to offer gambling themselves) will have to hold an operating licence from 
the Commission before the premises licence can be issued, licensing authorities 
will not need to investigate the suitability of an applicant. If during the course of 
considering a premises licence application, or at any other time, the licensing 
authority receives information that causes it to question the suitability of the 
applicant to hold an operating licence, these concerns should be brought to the 
attention of the Commission without delay. 
 
5.8 Licensing authorities will need to consider the location of premises in the context 
of this licensing objective. If an application for a licence or permit is received in 
relation to premises that are in an area noted for particular problems with 
organised crime, for example, licensing authorities should think about what (if 
any) controls might be appropriate to prevent those premises becoming a source 
of crime. These might include conditions being put on the licence, such as a 
requirement for door supervisors. 
 
5.9 A licensing authority will need to consider questions raised by the location of 
gambling premises when: 
_ formulating its statement of licensing policy; 
_ receiving relevant representations to an application; 
_ dealing with applications as a responsible authority in its own right; and 
_ considering applications before it. 
 
5.10 Regulatory issues arising from the prevention of disorder are likely to focus 
almost exclusively on premises licensing, rather than on operating licences. 
(Although if there are persistent or serious disorder problems that an operator 
could or should do more to prevent, the licensing authority should bring this to 
the attention of the Commission so that it can consider the continuing suitability 
of the operator to hold an operating licence.) 
 
 
 
 

Page 149



5.11 Local authorities are experienced in making judgements in relation to the 
suitability of premises, particularly those for which they have responsibilities 
under the Licensing Act 2003, in which context they have wider powers to also 
take into account measures to prevent nuisance. 
 
5.12 In relation to preventing disorder, licensing authorities have the ability under 
section 169 of the Act to attach additional conditions to premises licences, and 
are entitled to include a requirement for door supervision, as provided for in 
section 178 of the Act. If a person employed on door supervision would be 
required to hold a licence issued by the Security Industry Authority (SIA), that 
requirement will have force as though it were a condition on the premises licence. 
Further information on conditions can be found in Part 9 of this guidance. 
 
5.13 Local authorities should note that in the case of gambling premises licences, 
disorder is intended to mean activity that is more serious and disruptive than 
mere nuisance. Factors to consider in determining whether a disturbance was 
serious enough to constitute disorder would include whether police assistance 
was required and how threatening the behaviour was to those who could see or 
hear it. There is not a clear line between nuisance and disorder and the licensing 
authority should take the views of its lawyers before determining what action to 
take in circumstances in which disorder may be a factor. 
 
5.14 It should be noted that, unlike the Licensing Act, the Gambling Act does not 
include as a specific licensing objective the prevention of public nuisance. Any 
nuisance associated with gambling premises should be tackled under other relevant 
laws. 
 

Page 150



Appendix 10 
 
Gambling Commission Advice on Protecting Children and 
Other Vulnerable Persons from being Harmed or Exploited by 
Gambling 
 
5.18 With limited exceptions, the intention of the Gambling Act is that children and 
young persons should not be permitted to gamble and should be prevented from 
entering those gambling premises which are adult-only environments. The objective 
talks of protecting children from being ‘harmed or exploited by gambling’. That 
means preventing them from taking part in gambling and for there to be 
restrictions on advertising so that gambling products are not aimed at children or 
advertised in such a way that makes them particularly attractive to children. 
 
5.19 In relation to casinos, the Commission has issued a code of practice on access 
to casino premises by children and young persons, as provided for by section 176 of 
the Act. The code of practice is available as part of the Licence conditions and 
codes of practice on the Commission website www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk. 
In accordance with that section, adherence to the code will be a condition of the 
premises licence. (Please see Part 9 of this guidance for more information.) 
 
5.20 The Act does not seek to prohibit particular groups of adults from gambling in 
the same way that it prohibits children. The Commission will not seek to define 
‘vulnerable persons’, but it will for regulatory purposes assume that this group 
includes people who gamble more than they want to; people who gamble beyond 
their means; and people who may not be able to make informed or balanced 
decisions about gambling due to mental health needs, learning disability or 
substance misuse relating to alcohol or drugs. 
 
5.21 Licensing authorities will need to consider, in relation to particular premises, 
whether any special considerations apply in relation to the protection of 
vulnerable persons. Any such considerations will need to be balanced against the 
authority’s objective to aim to permit the use of premises for gambling. 
draft of the code is available from the Cabinet Office website 
www.cabinetoffice.gov.uk. It is intended that the code will be laid 
before Parliament during autumn 2007, coming into force on 1 April 2008. 

Page 151



 
 

Page 152



Appendix 11 
 
Gambling Commission Advice on Moral Objections 
 
5.26 Local authorities should be aware that moral objections to gambling are not a 
valid reason to reject applications for premises licences. This is because such 
objections do not relate to the licensing objectives. An authority’s decision cannot 
be based on dislike of gambling, or a general notion that it is undesirable to allow 
gambling premises in an area (with the exception of the casino resolution 
powers). In deciding to reject an application, a licensing authority should rely on 
reasons that demonstrate that the licensing objectives are not being, or are 
unlikely to be, met. 

Page 153



 
 

Page 154



Appendix 12 
 
Gambling Commission Advice on Premises Licences 
 
7.1 Where an individual or company proposes to offer gambling for which an 
operating licence is required, and which is premises based, that individual or 
company will also need to apply for a premises licence. 
 
7.2 Premises licences are issued by the licensing authority with responsibility for the 
area in which the premises are situated. 
 
7.3 The Act contains no rules about cases where premises lie within more than one 
authority’s area. Such cases are likely to be rare. The Commission would expect 
an applicant to apply to the licensing authority in whose area the greater or 
greatest part of the premises is situated; and if another authority receives an 
application it should discuss with the applicant and the neighbouring authority as 
to which is the appropriate authority. Ultimately, there is nothing in the Act giving 
an authority the right to turn down an application because it is responsible for a 
smaller area of the premises than another authority. However, in such 
circumstances, the other authority will be a ‘responsible authority’ in relation to 
the premises (see Part 8 of this guidance), and will be able to give a view on the 
application through these channels. Note, this is not the same as the Licensing 
Act where an application must be made to the authority in which the greater part 
of the premises is situated (see Annex A). 
 
7.4 Where the premises are located in two or more areas (equally or otherwise), 
ultimately the applicant may choose which licensing authority to apply to. In the 
rare cases where such premises exist, it will be important that the licensing 
authorities concerned maintain close contact about the grant of the premises 
licence, and subsequent compliance (including inspection powers) and other 
licensing functions. The licensing authority to which the premises licence 
application was made will have jurisdiction and the other(s) will need to pass 
relevant information about the premises to it. 
 
7.5 In accordance with section 150 of the Act, premises licences can authorise the 
provision of facilities on: 
(a) casino premises; 
(b) bingo premises; 
(c) betting premises, including tracks and premises used by betting 
intermediaries; 
(d) adult gaming centres (for category B3, B4, C and D machines); and 
(e) family entertainment centres (for category C and D machines) (note that 
separate to this category, the licensing authority may issue a family 
entertainment centre gaming machine permit, which authorises the use of 
category D machines only). 
 
7.6 Please see Part 16 of this guidance for more information about gaming machine 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 155



Meaning of premises 
7.11 In the Act, ‘premises’ is defined as including ‘any place’. Section 152 therefore 
prevents more than one premises licence applying to any place. But, there is no 
reason in principle why a single building could not be subject to more than one 
premises licence, provided they are for different parts of the building, and the 
different parts of the building can reasonably be regarded as being different 
premises. This approach has been taken to allow large, multiple unit premises 
such as a pleasure park, track, or shopping mall to obtain discrete premises 
licences, where appropriate safeguards are in place. However, licensing authorities 
should pay particular attention if there are issues about sub-divisions of a single 
building or plot and should ensure that mandatory conditions relating to access 
between premises are observed. 
 
7.12 In most cases the expectation is that a single building/plot will be the subject of 
an application for a licence, for example, 32 High Street. But, that does not mean 
that 32 High Street cannot be the subject of separate premises licences for the 
basement and ground floor, if they are configured acceptably. Whether different 
parts of a building can properly be regarded as being separate premises will 
depend on the circumstances. The location of the premises will clearly be an 
important consideration and the suitability of the division is likely to be a matter 
for discussion between the operator and the licensing officer. However, the 
Commission does not consider that areas of a building that are artificially or 
temporarily separated, for example by ropes or moveable partitions, can properly 
be regarded as different premises. 
 
7.13 With the exceptions of the non-gambling area of the regional casino, bingo 
clubs, tracks on race-days and licensed family entertainment centres, children will not 
be permitted to enter licensed gambling premises. Therefore businesses will need to 
consider carefully how they wish to configure their buildings if they are seeking to 
develop multi-purpose developments. 
 
7.14 Licensing authorities should take particular care in considering applications for 
multiple licences for a building and those relating to a discrete part of a building 
used for other (non-gambling) purposes. In particular they should be aware of the 
following: 
_ The third licensing objective seeks to protect children from being harmed by 
gambling. In practice that means not only preventing them from taking part in 
gambling, but also that they are not permitted to be in close proximity to 
gambling. Therefore premises should be configured so that children are not 
invited to participate in, have accidental access to, or closely observe 
gambling where they are prohibited from participating. 
_ Entrances and exits from parts of a building covered by one or more licences 
should be separate and identifiable so that the separation of different premises 
is not compromised and that people do not ‘drift’ into a gambling area. 
 
7.15 The proper application of section 152 means that different premises licences 
cannot apply in respect of single premises at different times. There is no temporal 
element to a premises licence. Therefore, premises could not, for example, be 
licensed as a bingo hall on week days and a betting shop at weekends. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 156



Division of premises and access between premises 
 
7.16 An issue that may arise when division of a premises is being considered is the 
nature of the unlicensed area from which a customer may access a licensed 
gambling premises. For casinos, bearing in mind the wide definition of a street, 
access might be from a foyer or other area which the public might enter for 
purposes other than gambling. The precise nature of this public area will depend 
on the location and nature of the premises. Licensing authorities will need to 
consider whether the effect of any division is to create a machine shed-type 
environment with very large banks of machines, which is not the intention of the 
access conditions, or whether it creates a public environment with gambling 
facilities available if desired. Licensing authorities should, in particular, remember 
that where they have concerns about the use of premises for gambling, these may 
be addressed through licence conditions. 
 
7.17 The Gambling Act 2005 (Mandatory and Default Conditions) Regulations5 set 
out the access provisions for each type of premises. The broad principle is that there 
can be no access from one licensed gambling premises and another, except 
between premises which allow access to those under the age of 18. Under-18s 
can go into family entertainment centres, tracks, pubs and some bingo halls and 
clubs. So access is allowed between these types of premises only. 
 
7.18 It should be noted that the Mandatory and Default Premises Licence 
Regulations define street as ‘including any bridge, road, lane, footway, subway, 
square, court, alley or passage (including passages through enclosed premises such 
as shopping malls) whether a thoroughfare or not’. This is to allow access, for 
example, to casinos from hotel foyers. 
 
7.19 There is no definition of ‘direct access’ in the Act or regulations. However, it 
could be said that there should be an area separating the premises concerned 
(eg a street or cafe), which the public go to for purposes other than gambling, for 
there to be shown to be no direct access. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 157



 
7.20 The relevant access provisions for each premises type is as follows: 
 
All casinos 
_ the principal entrance to the premises shall be from a street (as defined above); 
_ no entrance to a casino shall be from premises that are used wholly or mainly 
by children and/or young persons; 
_ no customer shall be able to enter a casino directly from any other premises 
which holds a gambling premises licence; and 
_ at the regional casino only, there should be an opaque barrier between the 
gaming area and the parts of the premises where children have access. 
 
Adult gaming centres 
_ no customer shall access the premises directly from any other licensed 
gambling premises. 
 
Betting shops 
_ access must be from a street (as defined above) or from other premises with a 
betting premises licence; and 
_ no direct access from a betting shop and another premises used for the retail 
sale of merchandise or services, ie there cannot be an entrance to a betting 
shop from a shop of any kind and you could not have a betting shop at the 
back of a cafe – the whole area would have to be licensed. 
Tracks 
_ no customer shall be able to access the premises directly from 
– a casino; or 
– an adult gaming centre. 
 
Bingo premises 
_ no customer shall access the premises directly from; 
– a casino; 
– an adult gaming centre; or 
– a betting premises, other than a track. 
 
Family entertainment centres 
_ no customer shall access the premises directly from: 
– a casino; 
– an adult gaming centre; or 
– a betting premises, other than a track. 

Page 158



Appendix 13 
 
Gambling Commission Advice on Off-track Betting 
 
Part 19: Betting premises 
19.1 The Act contains a single class of licence for betting premises. However, within 
this single class of licence, there are different types of premises which require 
licensing. This part of the guidance discusses off-course betting, that is betting 
that takes place other than at a track in what is currently known as a licensed 
betting office. Tracks are discussed in Part 20 of this guidance. Please note that 
there are also betting offices on tracks, that have a separate premises licence 
from the track licence. Those are also discussed in Part 20. 
19.2 The Act also permits betting intermediaries to operate from premises, although 
betting intermediaries usually offer their services via remote communication, such 
as the internet. In principle, however, there is nothing to stop a betting 
intermediary applying for a betting premises licence to offer intermediary services 
upon the premises. 
19.3 Under the Gambling Act licensing authorities are responsible for issuing and 
monitoring premises licences for all betting premises. The issuing of premises 
licences is discussed in Part 7 of this guidance.  
 
Protection of children 
19.4 Children and young persons will not be able to enter premises with a betting 
premises licence, although special rules apply to tracks, as explained in Part 20 of 
this guidance. 
 
Betting in casinos 
19.5 Gambling facilities may not be offered in betting premises between the hours of 
10pm on one day and 7am on the next day, on any day. 
 
Betting premises licence conditions 
19.6 Part 9 of this guidance discusses the conditions that may or may not be 
attached to premises licences, and those that are attached automatically. The 
Secretary of State and Scottish Ministers have set out in regulations the conditions 
relating specifically to betting premises. The paragraphs below discuss these 
conditions, both mandatory – those that must be attached to betting premises; and 
default – those that will apply unless the licensing authority chooses to exclude them 
using its powers under section 169. 
 
Mandatory conditions attaching to betting premises licences 
19.7 A notice shall be displayed at all entrances to the betting premises stating that 
no person under the age of 18 will be admitted. 
 
19.8 There should be no access to betting premises from other premises that 
undertake a commercial activity (except from other premises with a betting 
premises licence including tracks). In addition, the entrance to a betting shop 
should be from the street (defined as any bridge, road, lane, footway, subway, 
square, court, alley or passage – including passages through enclosed premises 
such as shopping centres – whether a thoroughfare or not). 
 

Page 159



19.9 Any ATM made available for use on the premises shall be located in a place 
that requires any customer who wishes to use it to leave any gaming machine or 
betting machine in order to do so. 
 
19.10 No apparatus for making information or any other material available in the form 
of sounds or visual images may be used on the licensed premises, except where 
the matter seen or heard is a sporting event and bets may have been affected on 
the premises in relation to that event. Betting operator-owned TV channels will be 
permitted. 
19.11 No music, dancing or other entertainment is permitted. 
19.12 The consumption of alcohol is prohibited on the premises. 
19.13 The only publications that may be sold on the premises are racing periodicals 
or specialist betting publications. 
19.14 Clear and accessible information about the terms on which a bet may be 
placed should be displayed in a prominent position on the premises. 
 
Default conditions attaching to betting premises licences 
19.15 Gambling facilities may not be offered in betting premises between the hours 
of 10pm on one day and 7am on the next day, on any day. 
 
Gaming machines 
19.16 Section 172(8) provides that the holder of a betting premises licence may 
make 
available for use up to four gaming machines of category B, C or D. Regulations 
state that category B machines at betting premises are restricted to sub-category 
B2, B3 and B4 machines. See Part 16 of this guidance for information on gaming 
machines. 
 
Betting machines (bet receipt terminals) 
19.17 Section 235(2)(c) provides that a machine is not a gaming machine if it is 
designed or adapted for use to bet on future real events. Some betting premises 
may make available machines that accept bets on live events, such as horse 
racing, as a substitute for placing a bet over the counter. These ‘betting 
machines’ are not gaming machines and therefore neither count towards the 
maximum permitted number of gaming machines, nor have to comply with any 
stake or prize limits. Such betting machines merely automate the process that can 
be conducted in person and therefore do not require regulation as a gaming 
machine. 
19.18 However, where a machine is made available to take bets on virtual races (that 
is, images generated by computer to resemble races or other events) that machine is 
a gaming machine and does count towards the maximum permitted number of 
gaming machines, and must meet the relevant category limitations for the 
premises. 
19.19 Section 181 contains an express power for licensing authorities to restrict the 
number of betting machines, their nature and the circumstances in which they are 
made available by attaching a licence condition to a betting premises licence or to 
a casino premises licence (where betting is permitted in the casino). When 
considering whether to impose a condition to restrict the number of betting 
machines in particular premises, the licensing authority, amongst other things, 
should take into account the size of the premises, the number of counter 
positions available for person-to-person transactions, and the ability of employees 
to monitor the use of the machines by children and young persons (it is an 
offence for those under 18 to bet) or by vulnerable people. 
 

Page 160



Appendix 14 
 
London Borough of Tower Hamlets Gambling Policy 
Definition of vulnerable person (1.46) 
 
As regards the term “vulnerable persons” it is noted that the Gambling 
Commission is not seeking to offer a definition but states that “it will for regulatory 
purposes assume that this group includes people who gamble more than they 
want to; people who gambling beyond their means; and people who may not be 
able to make informed or balanced decisions about gambling due to a mental 
impairment, alcohol or drugs.” This licensing authority will consider this licensing 
objective on a case by case basis. Should a practical definition prove possible in 
future then this policy statement will be updated with it, by way of a revision. 
 

Page 161



Page 162



 

Appendix 15 
 
London Borough of Tower Hamlets Gambling Policy 
 
6 Betting Premises 
6.1 Betting Machines - This licensing authority will have regard to the Gambling 
Commission’s Guidance, take into account the size of the premises, the number 
of counter positions available for person-to-person transactions, and the ability of 
staff to monitor the use of the machines by children and young persons (it is an 
offence for those under 18 to bet) or by vulnerable people, when considering the 
number/nature/circumstances of betting machines an operator wants to offer.  

Page 163



Page 164

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	3 RULES OF PROCEDURE
	4 UNRESTRICTED MINUTES
	5.1 Application for variation of the Premises Licence: Kivre Food Centre, 497-499 Cambridge Heath Road, London E2 9BU (LSC072/809)
	CambridgeHeathRd497-499Part2
	CambridgeHeathRd497-499Part3
	CambridgeHeathRd497-499Part4
	CambridgeHeathRd497-499Part5
	CambridgeHeathRd497-499Part6
	CambridgeHeathRd497-499Part7

	5.2 Application for a new Premises Licence: Coral, 56 Bow Common Lane, London, E3 4DE (LSC073/809)
	56BowCommonLanePart1
	56BowCommonLanePart2
	56BowCommonLanePart3
	56BowCommonLanePart4
	56BowCommonLanePart5
	56BowCommonLanePart6
	56BowCommonLanePart7


